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February 5, 2018

Dear Sheila,

I am replying to your email of January 12, 2018 in which you asked for for clarification on how the recent Bill 148 changes to the Employment Standards Act, 2000 (“ESA”), to provide 6% vacation pay to employees with a “period of employment” of 5 years or longer would apply to Contract Academic Staff.  
I apologize for the delay in responding but the application of the new provision in the context of Contract Academic Staff required a review of both the ESA and the collective agreement and the University wanted to ensure that it carefully considered this issue.
The ESA now provides for increased vacation entitlements of 6% vacation pay after an employee has a “period of employment” of 5 years or more.  In the University’s view the “period of employment” for vacation purposes means only continuous, unbroken periods of employment.  While the ESA provides that the “period of employment” includes both “active and inactive employment”, in the University’s view it does not require an employer to combine distinct periods of employment into a single period and does not extend across separate, distinct contracts. 
In light of the above, the issue turns to the status of employees in the CAS bargaining unit between appointments given that these employees are hired on a fixed term contract basis, which typically lasts for a term.  The University has considered the provisions of the Collective Agreement to address this issue, including in particular the manner in which the appointments are structured and the manner in which seniority accumulates and applies under its terms.  

In the University’s view employees in the CAS bargaining unit do not retain employment status between their fixed term contractual appointments and each appointment is a separate period of employment.  While employees in the CAS bargaining unit may retain seniority status between contractual appointments, under the Collective Agreement employment status and seniority status are distinct concepts.  Accordingly, most employees in the CAS bargaining unit will not qualify for 6% vacation pay as they will not be employed under the Collective Agreement for a period of employment of 5 years or more.  There may be some employees in the CAS bargaining unit who might be eligible for 6% vacation pay under the ESA.  For example, Standing Appointments (Article 13.7.4) are offered for up to 5 years, with a guaranteed 3-course teaching load each year of the standing appointment.  If an employee in the bargaining unit held a standing appointment that amounted to a continuous period of uninterrupted employment of 5 years or more they would qualify for the 6% after completion of five years of service and until there is a break in service.  Similarly any other employees in the CAS bargaining unit who held a series of continuous renewable appointments amounting to a continuous period of employment of 5 years or more would also be entitled to 6% vacation pay.
As I understand these are unchartered waters, please let me know if you wish to meet and discuss further. 
Sincerely,

Allison Arnold

Director, Faculty and Staff Relations

